SUPPORTING STATEMENT FOR EPA INFORMATION COLLECTION REQUEST NUMBER 2519.02 "HAZARDOUS WASTE EXPORT-IMPORT REVISIONS RULE"

August 2016

Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery United States Environmental Protection Agency Washington, D.C. 20460

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	IDEN	TIFICATION OF THE INFORMATION COLLECTION1
	1(a)	Title and Number of the Information Collection1
	1(b)	Short Characterization1
2.	NEEL	O FOR AND USE OF THE COLLECTION7
	2(a)	Need and Authority for the Collection7
	2(b)	Practical Utility and Users of the Data7
3.	NONI	DUPLICATION, CONSULTATIONS, AND OTHER COLLECTION
		ERIA7
	3(a)	Nonduplication7
	3(b)	Public Notice
	3(c)	Consultations8
	3(d)	Effects of Less Frequent Collection8
	3(e)	General Guidelines8
	3(f)	Confidentiality8
	3(g)	Sensitive Questions
4.	THE I	RESPONDENTS AND THE INFORMATION REQUESTED9
	4(a)	Respondents and NAICS Codes9
	4(b)	Information Requested10
5.		INFORMATION COLLECTED AGENCY ACTIVITIES,
		LECTION METHODOLOGY, AND INFORMATION
	MAN	AGEMENT18
	5(a)	Agency Activities
	5(b)	Collection Methodology and Management19
	5(c)	Small Entity Flexibility19
	5(d)	Collection Schedule19
6.	ESTI	MATING THE HOUR AND COST BURDEN OF THE COLLECTION20
	6(a)	Estimating Respondent Burden20
	6(b)	Estimating Respondent Costs20
	6(c)	Estimating Agency Burden and Costs21
	6(d)	Estimating the Respondent Universe and Total Burden and Costs22
	6(e)	Bottom Line Burden Hours and Costs27
	6(f)	Reasons for Change in Burden28
	6(g)	Burden Statement

1.

IDENTIFICATION OF THE INFORMATION COLLECTION

1(a) Title and Number of the Information Collection

This information collection request (ICR) is entitled "Hazardous Waste Export-Import Revisions Rule" EPA ICR Number 2519.02, OMB Number 2050-0214.

1(b) Short Characterization

Since March 1992, OECD member countries have regulated the international movement of hazardous wastes destined for recovery under Council Decision C(92)39/FINAL. EPA's April 1996 Imports and Exports of Hazardous Waste Final Rule implements OECD's Council Decision C(92)39/FINAL in the United States under RCRA authority, under 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart H.¹ While that rule codifies the OECD requirements for U.S. imports and exports of hazardous waste with OECD countries, shipments to Canada and Mexico are also covered under separate bilateral agreements. RCRA regulatory requirements for exports to Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries are under 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart E, and the corresponding import requirements for shipments from these countries are under 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart F. In 2004, in order to improve some of its provisions and enhance harmonization with the Basel Convention, OECD updated its rule under Council Decision C(2001)107/FINAL, as amended by C(2004)20 and further amendments in November 2005 and November 2008. In 2008, EPA developed the Proposed Rule on Exports and Imports of Hazardous Waste Destined for Recovery Among OECD Countries, Exports of Spent Lead-Acid Batteries from the U.S., and Import Consent Documentation to implement these updates and strengthen controls on SLABs by making their export subject to subpart E export regulations, if being shipped to Canada, Mexico, or non-OECD countries, or subject to subpart H OECD regulations, if being shipped to OECD countries other than Canada or Mexico. The final rule for these changes was issued in 2010. Because domestic shipment of SLABs for recycling is exempted from RCRA manifest requirements, export shipments of SLABs were also exempted from RCRA manifest requirements. But export shipments of SLABs subject to subpart H OECD requirements were subject to OECD movement document requirements under the changes in the 2010 rule.

Since the 2010 rulemaking, however, EPA and several non-governmental organizations have raised concerns over the lack of reporting and insufficient environmental and occupational health controls associated with transboundary movement of hazardous wastes, most notably regarding exports of SLABs to Canada and Mexico.^{2,3,4} To address these concerns, EPA will

¹ U.S. EPA Imports and Exports of Hazardous Waste: Implementation of OECD Council Decision C(92)39 Concerning the Control of Transfrontier Movements of Wastes Destined for Recovery Operations, Final Rule, Federal Register, Vol. 61, No. 72, April 12, 1996.

² OECD (2012), Illegal Trade in Environmentally Sensitive Goods, OECD Trade Policy Studies, OECD Publishing, accessed at http://dx.doi.org/10.1787/9789264174238-en on November 12, 2014.

³ Occupational Knowledge International and Fronteras Comunes, *Exporting Hazards: U.S. shipments of used lead batteries to Mexico take advantage of lax environmental and worker health regulations*, June 2011, accessed at http://www.okinternational.org/docs/Exporting%20Hazards_Study_100611v5.pdf on November 12, 2014.

⁴ Secretariat of the Commission for Environmental Cooperation, Hazardous Trade? An Examination of US-generated Spent Lead-Acid Battery Exports and Secondary Lead Recycling in Canada, Mexico, and the United States, April 2013, accessed at http://www3.cec.org/islandora/en/item/11220-hazardous-trade-examination-us-generated-spent-lead-acid-battery-exports-and on

make all U.S. imports and exports of hazardous waste, including those with countries outside of OECD, subject to standards equivalent to those promulgated in 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart H in the 2010 rulemaking. In addition, EPA will mandate the electronic submission of required documents, which is expected to improve data availability and quality. Better data will help the United States and other countries control the environmental and health risks associated with hazardous waste movement, processing, and disposal.

The pertinent details of the rule are outlined below. For further information regarding the historical context and details of this rulemaking, please refer to the Preamble to the rule.

REGULATORY CHANGES/AMENDMENTS

A. Changes to 40 CFR Part 262, Subparts E and F

The rule will regulate hazardous waste shipments with Mexico, Canada and non-OECD countries in a manner more consistent with regulations currently in place for shipments with other OECD member countries under 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart H. Many of the regulatory changes described below therefore do not alter the requirements in Subpart H associated with each provision, but rather adjust the types of entities held to each requirement by making entities currently subject to Subpart E and F requirements subject to Subpart H requirements. Changes to requirements for shipments currently subject to 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart E (i.e., exports to Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries) and Subpart F (i.e., imports from Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries) include the following:

(1) Exporters of hazardous waste to Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries will be required to submit additional information with each export notice.

This additional information includes an e-mail address and fax number for each listed party on the notice, all anticipated transporters for the shipments, all anticipated export ports in the United States, any interim facilities to be used during the transfer of waste, and the OECD waste codes and recycling or disposal operation codes for all waste streams to be shipped. Exporters to other OECD countries are already required to submit this information, and will therefore experience no change in their cost burden as a result of the rule.

(2) Importers of RCRA hazardous wastes not treated as hazardous waste exports by the country of export will need to submit notices to EPA on behalf of foreign exporters.

§262.82(a)(2)(ii) requires that hazardous waste shipments fulfill all regulatory requirements regardless of the designation of the waste in the country of export. §262.82(a)(2)(ii)(B) specifies that export notice requirements usually assigned to foreign exporters will become the duty of U.S. import facilities receiving shipments of waste. This requirement already applies to shipments of waste from other OECD countries and will be required for import shipments from Canada, Mexico, or non-OECD countries. This new U.S. requirement will not affect shipments from Canada

October 21, 2014.

as Canadian regulations already require export notices whenever the country of import controls the proposed shipment as hazardous waste, but will affect import shipments from Mexico and non-OECD countries effective as December 31, 2016.

(3) For export annual reports to EPA, exporters to Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries must list OECD waste codes for all shipments in addition to RCRA waste codes, and must list DOT/ID numbers in place of DOT hazard classes.

Exporters of hazardous waste to OECD countries must already comply with the first requirement in Subpart H. Exporters to Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD counties will be affected by the second requirement, but as it replaces an existing data item being collected, the net impact of the second requirement will be zero.

(4) Contracts must be signed between exporters and importers of hazardous waste and foreign facilities specifying the parties relevant to each shipment and the various legal responsibilities of each party involved.

Exporters and importers of hazardous waste with OECD countries are already held to this requirement under subpart H. Exporters and importers of hazardous waste with Canada, Mexico and non-OECD countries will now be subject to this new U.S. requirement effective as of December 31, 2016, but U.S. exporters and importers of waste with Canada will not be impacted as Canadian regulations already require contracts between the Canadian facility and the foreign facility.

(5) Exception reports can be based on either RCRA manifests or OECD movement documents.

Currently, exception reports under Subpart E are only based off of RCRA manifests. This change will potentially impact export shipments of universal waste and SLABs to Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries that are partially or wholly rejected by the foreign receiving facility.

(6) Exporters and importers must ensure that a movement document accompanies all shipments of hazardous waste.

The movement document must include a signed certification, as well as all information required for notification. For shipments to and from Canada, exporters and importers may use the existing Canadian movement document they are already required to use under Canadian regulations to fulfill this requirement. Similarly, exporters to OECD countries and importers receiving waste from OECD countries for recycling (with the exception of Canada and Mexico) are already required to complete this document. Therefore, this requirement will only impact exporters and importers exchanging waste with Mexico and non-OECD countries. This is required for U.S. receiving facilities and foreign facilities by December 31, 2016. Electronic submission to EPA will be required by electronic system implementation year. Implementation year is expected between 2018 and 2022.

(7) During the interim period between the effective date and the future compliance date, U.S. receiving facilities must send a copy of the signed OECD movement document to the foreign exporter of the waste and the relevant authorities of the exporting country. Electronic submission of the OECD movement document to EPA will be required at the future compliance date.

This requirement must be completed within three days of receiving a shipment of hazardous waste. Importers must also maintain a signed copy of the movement document for three years. Importers receiving waste from other OECD countries must already comply with this requirement. Similarly, importers receiving waste from Canada can use the Canadian movement document they are already required to send to the Canadian exporter under Canadian regulations to fulfill this requirement, so the expected net burden will be sending copies to Environment Canada and EPA (at the time of the electronic system implementation, anticipated between 2018 and 2022.). Importers receiving shipments from Mexico and non-OECD countries will experience the full impact of this change, as they currently do not send copies of such a movement document to anyone.

(8) U.S. receiving facilities must prepare and send a confirmation of recovery or disposal to EPA, the exporter, and the relevant authority in the country of export for each shipment received.

Importers receiving shipments from OECD countries are already subject to this requirement under existing U.S. regulations, and will therefore not experience a change in burden as a result of the rule. U.S. importers receiving shipments from Canada are already required to prepare and send a confirmation to the foreign exporter, and therefore will only incur costs to send confirmations to EPA and Environment Canada. U.S. importers receiving shipments from Mexico and non-OECD countries will experience the full impact of this change as they are not currently required to send confirmations of recovery or disposal to anyone. This requirement is effective as of December 31, 2016 for exporters, and effective for importers as of the complete IT system implementation date anticipated between 2018 and 2022.

(9) U.S. exporters must maintain a copy of the movement document and the confirmation of recovery or disposal from the foreign importing facility for three years.

Exporters to OECD countries are already subject to this requirement under existing regulations, and will therefore not experience a change in burden as a result of the rule. Exporters to Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries will be affected by this change.

(10) Return of wastes.

When a manifested shipment of hazardous waste cannot be completed, the primary exporter must (1) instruct the transporter to either return the shipment to the exporter or to an alternative facility in the United States, and (2) submit an exception report to EPA. The rule does not change any of these requirements with the exception of allowing the alternate facility to be in the country of import if allowed by the country of import, specifying that the instructions to the transporter be made via mail, e-mail, or fax (so that a record of the instructions exist), and requiring that the shipments be returned within 90 days of receiving notification from the country of import or transit.

(11) Transnational shipments with Canada, Mexico, and non-OCED countries that are exempt from export and import requirements as wastes destined for laboratory analysis are subject to additional weight limits.

Under existing regulations in 40 CFR Part 261, domestic shipments of hazardous waste sent for laboratory analysis are exempt from hazardous waste requirements if they fall within certain weight limits. Existing weight limits for exempted waste shipments range from 1kg for acute hazardous waste to 10,000kg of media contaminated with non-acute hazardous waste. Exporters and importers shipping hazardous waste samples for laboratory analysis to and from OECD countries are already subject to the additional limitation that the samples weigh no more than 25kg to be exempt from Subpart H export and import requirements (e.g., notice, movement document). The rule makes exporters and importers shipping samples for laboratory analysis to and from Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries subject to the additional limitation of samples weighing no more than 25kg to be exempt from support requirements. As a result, currently-exempt shipments may no longer be exempt.

(12) Transporter manifesting requirements.

Exporters shipping wastes to any country subject to RCRA manifesting requirements will no longer be required to provide an extra copy of the manifest to the transporter, and the transporter will no longer be required to give that copy to the Customs officer at the port of exit at time of departure. This change will affect all export shipments currently subject to Subpart E or H. This paper submittal requirement is being dropped because it will be duplicative to CBP's Automated Export System (AES) filing and information provided in the eventual submittal of the OECD movement document by the foreign receiving facility to confirm receipt.

B. Changes to 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart H

(1) Exporters will no longer be required to submit a copy of EPA's Acknowledgment of Consent to transporters.

Under existing regulations in Subpart E, exporters shipping to Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries must provide a copy of EPA's Acknowledgment of Consent to the transporter for each hazardous waste shipment. The rule eliminates this requirement. Exports to OECD countries other than Canada and Mexico will not be impacted by this change.

(2) Obtain EPA Identification Numbers

The rule will require all recognized traders involved in the arrangement of transportation of hazardous waste to obtain an EPA ID number.⁵ EPA assumes that one percent of all exporters and importers are recognized traders.

(3) Exporters and importers must comply with electronic reporting requirements using EPA's hazardous waste import/export database.

The rule establishes requirements for electronic reporting for exporters and importers of hazardous waste and exempted waste in part 261 subject to export conditions (i.e., cathode ray tubes (CRTs) that are exported for recycling). Many of the activities required for these entities will be determined by instructions associated with EPA's electronic document receiving system. Under the rule, EPA plans to employ the already developed agency-wide receiving system, the Central Data Exchange (CDX), for the electronic submittal of required forms. The electronic system guides users through the registration and reporting procedures. Electronic submittal is required for all exporters and importers; however, a waiver is available for companies that meet certain conditions specified by EPA (i.e., lack of access to broadband internet or other unique circumstances). Each individual entity required to submit documents electronically will need to register to use the system. The rule will require electronic submittal of export notices, import notices (where the shipment is not considered hazardous in the country of export), confirmation of receipt for import manifests, confirmation of recovery/disposal, movement documents, exception reports, annual reports, and notification for return of wastes. Each submittal will require that the exporter or importer sign each document electronically. CDX registration will be required for exporters by the end of the transition period, and will be required for all importers by the IT system implementation year. Implementation is expected between 2018 and 2022.

(4) Exporters must file additional EPA data elements as part of their AES filing requirements under 15 CFR 30.4 (this requirement is also being added to the CRT export requirements in 40 CFR 261.39(a)(5)).

Under existing U.S. Census Bureau regulations, exporters of waste subject to RCRA consent requirements must enter shipment data into the U.S. Census Bureau's AES for each shipment. Under the rule, exporters will be required in Subpart H to fill in two additional fields for the export license and EPA consent number, and conditionally required to fill in three additional fields related to the RCRA hazardous waste manifest tracking number, exported quantity, and reporting units if the existing AES-required reporting is not in units of weight (kg) or volume (L).

⁵ A recognized trader is a person domiciled in the United States, who acts to arrange and facilitate transboundary movements of wastes destined for recovery or disposal operations, either by purchasing from and subsequently selling to U.S. and foreign facilities, or by acting under arrangements with a U.S. waste facility to arrange for the export or import of the wastes.

This provision sets new requirements for CRTs exported for recycling under 40 CFR 261.39. EPA estimates that these exporters are already filing in AES for all shipments under current U.S. Census Bureau regulations. This change requires the filing of two to five additional fields in AES, as would filings for hazardous waste export shipments subject to Part 262 export requirements.

2. NEED FOR AND USE OF THE COLLECTION

2(a) Need and Authority for the Collection_

The requirements covered in this ICR are necessary for EPA to oversee the international trade of hazardous wastes. EPA is promulgating the above regulatory changes/amendments under the authority of Sections 1006, 1007, 2002(a), 3001-3010, 3013-3015, and 3017 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), and as amended by the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments, 42 U.S.C. 6905, 6906, 6912, 6921-6930, 6934, and 6938.

2(b) Practical Utility and Users of the Data

The Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance, U.S. EPA, uses the information provided by each U.S. exporter, receiving facility, transporter, and recognized trader to determine compliance with the applicable RCRA regulatory provisions. In addition, the information is used to determine the number, origin, destination, and type of exports from and imports to the U.S. for tracking purposes and for reporting to the OECD. This information also is used to assess the efficiency of the program.

3. NONDUPLICATION, CONSULTATIONS, AND OTHER COLLECTION CRITERIA

3(a) Nonduplication

Most of the information required by the regulations covered by this ICR is not available from any source but the respondents. In certain occasions, such as the notification of intent to export hazardous waste, EPA allows the primary exporter to submit one notice that covers activities over a period of twelve months.

Except as described below, the rule will not result in the collection of duplicate data. Although some of the information required for the hazardous waste manifest and the movement document is substantively the same, up to six pieces of additional information are required for the movement document. In addition, these two documents serve different purposes. A signed copy of the hazardous waste manifest, which is not valid beyond U.S. borders, is dropped off at the U.S. Customs check point when the shipment leaves the U.S. to verify pertinent information, including point of departure, date, destination, and contents of the shipment. The movement document must accompany the shipment until it reaches the foreign recovery facility. The signed

movement document is subsequently returned to EPA and the U.S. exporter to acknowledge receipt of the shipment.

In certain cases, some of the information on the tracking document also may be collected by the Department of Commerce in its Census Bureau form titled "Shipper's Export Declaration" (15 CFR Part 30). This form, which is required for all shipments that have a value in excess of \$2,500, must be filed at the U.S. port of exit, similar to the current export requirements. However, the information contained in the Census Bureau's form is not adequate for EPA's purpose of tracking and identifying the export of hazardous waste from the U.S. For example, the wastes are identified by tariff codes that are less precise than the waste codes required by the tracking document.

3(b) Public Notice

In compliance with the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, EPA opened a 60-day public comment period at the time that the Rule was published in the Federal Register. To assist the public in commenting on the proposal, EPA raised a number of issues in the preamble to the Rule and asked for the public to comment on them. At the end of the comment period, EPA reviewed and addressed the public comments received in response to the notice in the final Regulatory Impact Analysis and ICR.

3(c) Consultations

EPA consulted with U.S. Customs and Border Protection and U.S. Census Bureau on the AES filing requirements. EPA also consulted with Greentec International Inc. to estimate the number of hours required to develop contracts associated with the contract requirement. EPA did not consult with any other organizations in the development of this ICR.

3(d) Effects of Less Frequent Collection

EPA has carefully considered the burden imposed upon the regulated community by the hazardous waste export-import revisions. EPA is confident that the activities required of respondents are necessary, and to the extent possible, has attempted to minimize the burden imposed. EPA believes strongly that if the minimum requirements specified under the regulations are not met, EPA cannot ensure that hazardous wastes are properly managed and do not pose a serious threat to human health and the environment.

3(e) General Guidelines

This ICR adheres to the guidelines stated in the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, OMB's implementing regulations, OMB's Information Collection Review Handbook, and other applicable OMB guidance.

3(f) Confidentiality

Section 3007(b) of RCRA and 40 CFR Part 2, subpart B, which defines EPA's general policy on public disclosure of information, contain provisions for confidentiality. However, the

Agency does not anticipate that businesses will assert a claim of confidentiality covering all or part of the rule. If such a claim were asserted, EPA must and will treat the information in accordance with the regulations cited above. EPA also will assure that this information collection complies with the Privacy Act of 1974 and OMB Circular 108.

3(g) Sensitive Questions

No questions of a sensitive nature are included in the information collection requirements associated with the rule.

4. THE RESPONDENTS AND THE INFORMATION REQUESTED

4(a) **Respondents and NAICS Codes**

The revisions to the hazardous waste export and import requirements under the rule affect all recycling and disposal facilities who receive imports of hazardous waste and all persons who export or import (or arrange for the export or import) hazardous waste being shipped for either recycling or disposal, SLABs being shipped for reclamation, industrial ethyl alcohol being shipped for reclamation, and hazardous recyclable materials being shipped for precious metal recovery, and hazardous waste samples of more than 25 kilograms being shipped for waste characterization or treatability studies. Potentially affected industries may include, but are not limited to the following:

NAICS	Industry Sector
211	Oil and Gas Extraction
212	Mining (except Oil and Gas)
324	Petroleum and Coal Products Manufacturing
325	Chemical Manufacturing
326	Plastics and Rubber Products Manufacturing
327	Nonmetallic Mineral Product Manufacturing
331	Primary Metal Manufacturing
332	Fabricated Metal Product Manufacturing
333	Machinery Manufacturing
334	Computer and Electronic Product Manufacturing
335	Electrical Equipment, Appliance, and Component Manufacturing
336	Transportation Equipment Manufacturing
339	Miscellaneous Manufacturing
423	Merchant Wholesalers, Durable Goods
424	Merchant Wholesalers, Nondurable Goods
522	Credit Intermediation and Related Activities
525	Funds, Trusts, and Other Financial Vehicles
531	Real Estate
541	Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services

NAICS	Industry Sector
561	Administrative and Support Services
562	Waste Management and Remediation Services
721	Accommodation
813	Religious, Grantmaking, Civic, Professional, and Similar Organizations

This list of potentially affected entities may not be exhaustive. The Agency's aim is to provide a guide for readers regarding those entities that potentially could be affected by this action. However, this action may affect other entities not listed in these tables.

4(b) Information Requested

This section describes the information collection requirements applicable to entities that would be affected by the Hazardous Waste Export-Import Revisions Rule.

CDX Registration

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

The rule establishes requirements for electronic reporting for exporters and importers of hazardous waste. CDX registration will be required for exporters by December 31, 2016, and will be required for all importers by the complete IT system implementation year. Implementation is expected between 2018 and 2022. Many of the activities required for these entities will be determined by instructions associated with EPA's electronic document receiving system. Under the rule, EPA plans to develop enhancements to WIETS to receive these submittals, likely using the Agency-wide CDX system, which will facilitate the electronic submittal of required documents. WIETS guides users through the registration and reporting procedures. Electronic submittal is required for all exporters and importers, with the exception of companies that meet certain conditions specified by EPA. Each entity required to submit documents electronically will need to register to use the system. To the extent that CROMERR applies, each submittal will require that the exporter or importer provide an electronic signature.

Under the rule, EPA estimates that any staff involved in the reporting of export/import notices, annual reports, or other required documents would have to register using the electronic receiving system. If identity proofing fails, registrants are routed to an "electronic signature agreement" form that is completed on the computer, printed out, signed, and then mailed to EPA. In addition, EPA estimates that 10 percent of users will have to update their information each year. EPA also estimates that 10 percent of users will have to register as new users due to employee turnover and 1 percent of users will have to re-register due to compromised signatures each year.

ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

All users will need to register using EPA's electronic receiving system and update their information when necessary. EPA estimates that importers will have an average of 4.8 users and exporters will have an average of 5.1 users.⁶ If identity proofing fails, the user will need to print and complete a document, sign it, and mail it to EPA.

Notification

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

Under the §262.83(b), exporters sending hazardous waste to Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries will be required to submit additional information with each notice. This additional informational includes an e-mail address and fax number for each listed party on the notice, all anticipated ports of exit, all anticipated transporters for the shipments, any interim facilities to be used during the transfer of waste, and the OECD waste codes and recycling or disposal operation codes for all waste streams to be shipped.

Exporters to Canada will not experience an additional burden from listing transporters and interim facilities, as these data elements are already required by Canadian regulations. Exporters to other OECD countries are already required to submit this information, and will therefore experience no change in their cost burden as a result of the rule.

Once the electronic system becomes fully operational, exporters will have the option to use the duplication feature in WIETS (in which data field information is copied from the previous notice), which will reduce this estimated burden for entities that submit identical notices (with the exception of the first and last shipment date fields) from year to year. EPA estimates that 60 percent of exporters will be able to take advantage of this duplication feature and incur no additional burden for providing supplemental information in WIETS starting in the second year after electronic submittal is formally mandated. The remaining 40 percent of exporters will have to enter this information for each new export notice.

The rule would require receiving facilities in the U.S. importing waste from *maquiladoras* in Mexico to submit import notices on behalf of these foreign exporters for any waste shipments not controlled as hazardous waste exports by Mexican authorities.

The rule also requires electronic submittal of notices using WIETS. To the extent that CROMERR applies, this would require exporters and importers to provide an electronic signature with each notice.

The rule will eliminate the existing §264.12(a)(1) requirement that importers notify a regional administrator four weeks prior to receiving a shipment of hazardous waste for the first time. This will result in a cost savings for U.S. importers.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

⁶ EPA estimates that large firms will have 6 employees and small firms will have 3 employees register to use the EPA's electronic receiving system. The estimates of 4.7 and 5 users per entity are based on the distribution of large and small firms among potentially affected importers and exporters based on data collected from Dun & Bradstreet (D&B).

Exporters must prepare and submit an export notice at least 60 days before the initial shipment is intended to be shipped off site. This notice may cover export activities extending over a 12 month period. If CROMERR applies, they must also electronically sign the notice.

Importers must prepare and submit a notice on behalf of the foreign exporter for shipments from *maquiladoras* in Mexico that are not controlled as hazardous waste exports by the foreign authority. The notice must contain detailed information regarding the exporter, waste details, transporters, means of transport and containers to be used, all points of entry and departure for each foreign country of transit, receiving facility information, and ultimate management method, and may cover shipments over a 12-month period. If CROMERR applies, importers must also electronically sign the notice.

One-time notices identifying the name, address, and contact information for a U.S. receiving facility and every new waste stream they intend to import are no longer required.

Re-notification

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

Under §262.83(b), as under the existing §262.53(c), when the conditions specified under the original notification change, the U.S. exporter must provide EPA with a re-notification of the change. The rule requires electronic submittal of all re-notifications sent to EPA. This will require each exporter to provide an electronic signature for certain data elements on each notice submitted.

Also, under §262.83(e) and (f) where a single shipment cannot be delivered or is rejected for any reason, the transporter or receiving facility must notify the exporter, EPA and the country of import or transit of the situation. Then, alternate management must be found in the country of import that is acceptable to the country of import, or the shipment must be returned to the United States; and finally, the exporter must submit an exception report.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

U.S. exporters must prepare and submit a re-notification to EPA if they wish to change the terms of the original notice. U.S. exports must submit an exception report if the shipment cannot be delivered. To the extent that CROMERR applies, the exporter must sign these documents electronically.

Annual Reports

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

Under §262.83(g), as under the existing §262.87(a), LQG exporters must list OECD waste codes for all shipments in addition to RCRA waste codes as part of each annual report. The rule will also require electronic submittal of all annual reports of exports of hazardous waste and CRTs for recycling. This will require each annual report to be signed electronically.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

U.S. exporters must enter OECD waste codes into each annual report. Exporters must also electronically sign each annual report.

Additional Reports

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

Under the §262.83(b)(8), as under the existing §262.53(d) and §262.83(d)(14), upon request by EPA, an exporter must continue to submit to EPA any additional information which a country of import requests in order to respond to a notification. The rule will not change this requirement or the manner through which such information is submitted to EPA.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

U.S. exporters must prepare and submit additional information to EPA upon request. This is the same as in the baseline.

Contracts

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

Under the rule, contracts must be signed between exporters of hazardous waste and receiving facilities specifying the parties relevant to each shipment and the various legal responsibilities of each party involved. Currently, there are no requirements for contracts in the U.S. under 40 CFR Part 262 Subpart E. However, Canadian regulations require that such contracts be maintained. EPA therefore assumes that shipments to Canada will not experience any additional burden as a result of this provision. EPA assumes that this would create an additional burden for exporters sending waste to Mexico and non-OECD countries.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

None.

Acknowledgement of Consent

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

Under the existing §262.52(c) and §266.80(a), exporters are required to provide a copy of the EPA Acknowledgment of Consent for each shipment to the transporter transporting the shipment for export. The rule eliminates this requirement. Thus, this would result in a cost savings for U.S. exporters.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

U.S. exporters no longer need to provide a copy of the EPA Acknowledgment of Consent to the transporter.

Exception Reports

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

Whereas exception reports for Subpart E are currently based on the RCRA manifest, under §262.83(h), exception reports will be based on either RCRA manifests or OECD movement documents for shipments to Canada, Mexico and non-OECD countries. The rule also requires exception reports to be submitted electronically to EPA. Effective date will be between 2018 and 2022, pending complete IT system development. To the extent that CROMERR applies, this will require that each exception report be signed electronically.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

U.S. exporters must prepare and submit the required exception report if any of the conditions listed in §262.83(h) occurs.

Movement/Tracking Document

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

Under §262.83(d), each time a U.S. exporter ships hazardous waste to a foreign country – including Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries – the exporter is required to complete and submit to the carrier a movement/tracking document. The movement document must include a signed certification, as well as all information required for notification. For shipments to and from Canada, exporters may use the existing Canadian movement document to fulfill this requirement. U.S. exporters must maintain copies of the movement documents they receive from foreign receiving facilities to confirm receipt for three years.

Under the rule, U.S. receiving facilities must send a copy of the signed OECD movement document to EPA electronically, effective as of the complete IT system development between 2018 and 2022, to the foreign exporter of the waste, and to the relevant authorities of the exporting country and any transit countries within three days of receiving a shipment of hazardous waste. Importers must also maintain a signed copy of the movement document for three years. Importers receiving waste from other OECD countries must already comply with this requirement and will experience no increase in cost as a result of this provision. Similarly, importers receiving waste from Canada can use the Canadian movement document to fulfill this requirement and will experience no additional cost burden to complete the document, but will incur costs to send a copy to EPA and Environment Canada. To the extent CROMERR applies, U.S. importers must submit copies of the movement document to EPA electronically with an electronic signature.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

U.S. exporters shipping hazardous waste to Mexico and non-OECD countries must complete and submit a movement/tracking document to the carrier, and maintain copies of the movement document they receive to confirm receipt from the foreign receiving facility for three years. U.S. importers must send a copy of the signed OECD movement document to EPA electronically, to the foreign exporter of the waste, and to the relevant authorities of the exporting country within three days of receiving a shipment of hazardous waste. To the extent CROMERR applies, electronic submittal of the copies must be done with an electronic signature. U.S. importers from Mexico and non-OECD countries must also maintain a signed copy of the movement document for three years. Submissions must be sent electronically by the implementation of the complete IT system between 2018 and 2022.

Confirmation of Recovery or Disposal

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

Under the existing §262.83(e), all U.S. recovery facilities must provide a confirmation of recovery or disposal to the exporter and send copies to the competent authorities of the countries of export and import. The confirmation of recovery must be provided as soon as possible, but no later than 30 days after the completion of recovery and no later than one calendar year following receipt of waste. U.S. importers receiving shipments from Canada are already required to prepare and send a confirmation of recovery or disposal to the foreign exporter under Canadian regulations, and therefore only incur costs to send copies of this document to EPA and Environment Canada. Furthermore, under §262.83(f)(5) EPA will require export contract terms that specify foreign receiving facilities sending confirmations of recycling/disposal that will allow use of the Canadian confirmation of recycling or disposal, and under §262.84(g) U.S. importers will be required to provide a confirmation of recovery/disposal and will be able to use the Canadian confirmation of recycling/disposal to use one document to list multiple shipments identified by their movement document number, waste line number, and the date of recycling or disposal. The rule will require that U.S. importers submit copies of the confirmation of recovery or disposal to EPA electronically, and to the extent CROMERR applies, will need to include an electronic signature.

U.S. exporters must also maintain a copy of the confirmation of recovery/disposal from the foreign importing facility for three years. U.S. importers will also need to maintain a copy of the confirmation of recovery/disposal for three years. While exporters and importers exchanging waste with OECD countries other than Canada and Mexico are already subject to this requirement under existing regulations, exporters and importers involved in the foreign trade of hazardous waste with Mexico, Canada, and non-OECD countries will experience an increase in cost burden as a result of these additional recordkeeping requirements. Submissions must be sent electronically by the implementation of the complete IT system between 2018 and 2022.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

U.S. importers must provide a confirmation of recovery to the exporter, EPA, and the competent authority of the country of export. Copies must be submitted to EPA electronically, and to the extent CROMERR applies, will need to include an electronic signature. U.S. exporters

must receive and maintain the confirmation of recovery/disposal provided by the recovery facility for three years, and U.S. importers must maintain a copy of the confirmation of recovery/disposal for three years. Submissions must be sent electronically by the implementation of the complete IT system between 2018 and 2022.

Return of Wastes

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

Under the existing §262.54(g), when a manifested shipment of hazardous waste cannot be completed, the primary exporter must (1) instruct the transporter to either return the shipment to the exporter or to an alternative facility in the United States, and (2) submit an exception report to EPA. The rule does not change any of these requirements with the exception of allowing the alternate facility to be in the country of import if allowed by the country of import, specifying that the instructions to the transporter be made via mail, e-mail, or fax (so that a record of the instructions exists), the IT system effective as of the implementation of the complete IT system between 2018 and 2022, and requiring that the shipments be returned within 90 days of receiving notification from the country of import or transit.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

U.S. exporters must instruct the transporter to either return the shipment to the exporter or to an alternative facility in the country of import (if allowed by the country of import) or the United States.

Exemption of Wastes Destined for Laboratory Analysis

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

Under the existing §262.82(g), import and export shipments of RCRA hazardous wastes with OECD countries other than Canada and Mexico are exempt from the Subpart H requirements if they are explicitly destined for laboratory analysis to assess their physical/chemical characteristics or to determine their suitability for recovery operations and no more than 25kg. Under existing regulations in 40 CFR Part 261, domestic shipments of hazardous waste sent for laboratory analysis are exempt from hazardous waste requirements if they fall within certain weight limits. Existing weight limits for exempted waste shipments range from 1kg for acute hazardous waste to 10,000kg of media contaminated with non-acute hazardous waste. The rule makes exporters and importers shipping samples for laboratory analysis to and from Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries subject to the additional limitation of samples weighing no more than 25kg to be exempt from export and import requirements. As a result, currently-exempt shipments may no longer be exempt. EPA estimates that four previously-exempted shipments (two export shipments and two import shipments) will no longer be exempted each year after the implementation of the rule.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

U.S. exporters shipping samples less than the domestic limits in 40 CFR Part 261 but greater than 25kg for laboratory analysis to Canada, Mexico, or a non-OECD country will now need to comply with the subpart H requirements, including submitting an export notice, obtaining an AOC, filing the additional items in AES to validate consent for the sample shipment, completing and signing a movement/tracking document, and receiving and maintaining a confirmation of recovery. Transporters of these samples will need to comply with hazardous waste manifest and movement document requirements to obtain, sign, and maintain a copy of the RCRA manifest and obtain and sign the movement/tracking document. U.S. importers receiving samples less than the domestic limits in 40 CFR Part 261 but greater than 25kg for laboratory analysis from Canada, Mexico, or a non-OECD country will now need to comply with the subpart H requirements, including signing the RCRA manifest and submitting the RCRA manifest to EPA, signing the movement/tracking document and providing a copy to the exporter, EPA, and competent authority of the country of export to confirm receipt, and sending a confirmation of recovery to the exporter, EPA, and foreign authority.

EPA ID

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

The rule will require all recognized traders involved in the arrangement of transportation of hazardous waste to obtain an EPA ID number. EPA assumes that one percent of all importers and exporters are recognized traders, or about four entities, and will be impacted by the rule. EPA also assumes the number of recognized traders is split equally among exporters and importers.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

Recognized traders of hazardous waste must obtain an EPA ID number from their authorized state or from EPA.

AES Requirements

(i) <u>Data Items</u>:

Under the rule in subpart H, exporters will be required to fill in between two and five additional fields to validate consent as part of their existing filing in CBP's AES. The rule would also add the same filing requirements for CRTs exported for recycling under 40 CFR 261.39.

(ii) <u>Respondent Activities</u>:

Exporters of CRTs for recycling and hazardous waste for recycling or disposal must file between two and five additional fields to validate consent as part of their existing AES filing.

5. THE INFORMATION COLLECTED -- AGENCY ACTIVITIES, COLLECTION METHODOLOGY, AND INFORMATION MANAGEMENT

5(a) Agency Activities

WIETS Development

To implement the rule, the most significant cost for EPA will be the development and maintenance of the electronic submittal system. Any costs of the CDX system are not described in this ICR because it exists now, would still exist absent the rule, and was developed to facilitate electronic submittal of data between EPA data systems and other entities such as the regulated community and other governments. However, EPA estimates that the initial development of enhancements to WIETS to facilitate electronic submittal of export and import reports (specifically related to the rule) will cost \$380,000, including staff technician labor costs.⁷ This ICR assumes that development costs are incurred in the first year of the rule's promulgation for development features related to the following: annual reports, baseline single notice export notices, import notices for cases where country of export does not control as hazardous waste, export exception reports, export and import confirmation receipts, export and import confirmations of recovery/disposal, import notifications regarding need to make alternate arrangements or need to return waste shipment, annual reports and piloting Versiforms are incurred in the first year of the rule's promulgation. Costs related to developing custom Versiform reporting capabilities and enhancing reporting and analysis capabilities are incurred in the second year of the rule's promulgation. It is anticipated the system will have a useful lifespan of 20 years. EPA further estimates that Operation and Maintenance (O&M) will incur \$250,500 in costs for FY17 for contract support, cost share for NCEDE, Versiforms, Wiets, and NCC licensing, EPA further estimates that the recurring O&M costs for the enhancements to WIETS will be \$260,500 per year after its development. Thus, the annualized cost for the enhancement of WIETS is \$299,492 using a 7 percent discount rate.

Since the electronic submittal system will provide technical guidance and tracking information to users, EPA estimates it will no longer have to respond to exporter inquiries related to the submittal of export notices. EPA estimates that such inquiries require 1,000 hours of Agency staff time each year. Furthermore, electronic submittal will reduce the Agency burden associated with manual entry of export notices. EPA receives approximately 1,632 notices per year and requires one hour to manually enter information from each export notice into WIETS. Therefore, Agency staff will experience a cost savings of 1,000 hours per year for avoided inquiries and 1,632 hours per year for avoided data entry. EPA also estimates that electronic submittal will eliminate the need for staff to manually enter information from export annual reports into WIETS. EPA receives approximately 395 export annual reports each year and takes about four hours to receive and process reports into a database. Therefore, EPA estimates that

⁷ EPA cost estimates for the development and operation & maintenance of the electronic system are from the spreadsheet "Cost estimates_March 11 2016" provided by Jospeh Krahe of EPA's Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery on March 16, 2016. This information is attached as Appendix B of the associated EA.

Agency staff will also experience a cost savings of 1,580 hours for avoided data entry associated with export annual reports.

Movement/Tracking Document

Under §262.83 and §262.84, exporters and importers that trade with Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries will have to comply with movement document requirements. As discussed above, exporters and importers that trade with other OECD countries are already required to submit signed movement documents to EPA. EPA will need to receive and record movement documents from importing countries for U.S. exports and receiving facilities for U.S. imports.

Confirmation of Recovery or Disposal

EPA will need to review and maintain a confirmation of recovery or disposal for hazardous waste shipments between the United States and Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries.

EPA ID

For recognized traders not located in authorized states that issue EPA ID numbers, EPA will need to review letters from recognized traders of hazardous waste requesting EPA identification numbers, enter this information into a database, generate an EPA ID number, and send it to each requesting recognized trader.

5(b) Collection Methodology and Management

The collection and management of the information submitted to EPA is stored by EPA in file cabinets and/or electronically to be compiled in an annual status report. In addition, the information is collected and stored for possible future use in enforcement actions. EPA uses electronic equipment such as personal computers and applicable database software, when appropriate.

5(c) Small Entity Flexibility

Some respondents will be small organizations. In certain cases, they will be able to obtain waivers to avoid reporting requirements associated with electronic submission of documents to EPA. Small entities may also incur fewer costs because they can complete the recordkeeping and reporting requirements in less time than large organizations because they export or import smaller quantities of hazardous waste. However, the size of the organization does not always reflect the amount of time needed to complete documents, submit reports, or maintain records. EPA believes that the information to be collected is the minimum amount necessary to fulfill the purpose of the rule. Furthermore, the decision to export or import hazardous waste is voluntary. Thus, no business, small or otherwise, is required to export or import its hazardous waste. Therefore, there is no mandatory burden on the regulated community, including small businesses.

5(d) Collection Schedule

Under the rule, export/import notifications, exception reports, documentation of EPA's consent to import, confirmations of recovery/disposal, and shipment tracking documents are generated and sent to EPA on an occurrence-specific basis for which there is no formalized schedule. The submission of information under this collection is initiated by the respondents. U.S. exporters must file with EPA a detailed annual report on hazardous waste exports, including a signed certification, by March 1st of each year.

6. ESTIMATING THE HOUR AND COST BURDEN OF THE COLLECTION

6(a) Estimating Respondent Burden

EPA assessed the potential cost impacts of the rule, including:

- Submittal of notices to EPA on behalf of foreign exporters by U.S. importers (for RCRA hazardous wastes not controlled as hazardous waste exports by the country of export).
- Submittal of additional information with each export notice.
- Listing of OECD waste codes for all shipments in each export annual report of hazardous wastes.
- Development of contracts between U.S. exporters of hazardous waste and foreign receiving facilities, and between U.S. importers of hazardous waste and foreign exporters.
- Removal of the requirement for exporters to provide a copy of EPA's Acknowledgment of Consent to transporters for each shipment.
- Movement document creation for exporters of hazardous waste.
- Transporters signing movement documents for import and export shipments.
- U.S. receiving facilities' signing and distribution of the OECD movement document to EPA, the generator of the waste, and the relevant authorities of the exporting country.
- U.S. receiving facilities' preparation and shipment of the confirmation of recovery or disposal to EPA, the exporter, and the relevant authority in the country of origin for each shipment received.
- U.S. exporters' maintenance of a copy of the confirmation of recovery or disposal from the foreign importing facility.
- The return of hazardous waste shipments to U.S. exporting facilities or alternate facilities in the country of import (if allowed by the country of import) or the United States.
- The exemption of various wastes destined for laboratory analysis from hazardous waste requirements when shipments contain no more than 25kg.
- The obtaining of EPA identification numbers by recognized traders of hazardous waste.
- Requirements for exporters of hazardous waste for recycling/disposal and CRTs for recycling to enter new data elements into the existing AES.

• CDX registration.

6(b) Estimating Respondent Costs

Labor Costs

For purposes of this analysis, this ICR estimates an average hourly respondent labor cost (including fringe benefits and overhead costs) of \$145.28 for managerial staff, \$71.19 for technical staff, \$38.21 for clerical staff, and \$165.45 for legal staff. These hourly labor costs were obtained from the following sources:

- Hourly wage: Bureau of Labor Statistics, occupational earnings data for May 2014.^{8,9}
- Wage inflation factor: Bureau of Labor Statistics, Employment Cost Index for 2014 and 2015.

Annual Capital and Operation & Maintenance (O&M) Costs

Capital costs usually include any produced physical good needed to provide the needed information, such as machinery, computers, and other equipment. O&M costs are those costs associated with paperwork requirements incurred continually over the life of the ICR. They are defined by the EPA as "the recurring dollar amount of costs associated with O&M or purchasing services."

O&M costs are those costs associated with materials and services procured for the information collection requirements included in this ICR. For this ICR, O&M costs include the following: (1) postage to mail a five-ounce package by certified mail (2.09 for postage, 3.30 for the certified-mail fee, and 0.16 for a 9×12 manila envelope = 5.55); (2) postage to mail a standard domestic letter (0.49 for first class postage and 0.03 for a standard envelope = 0.52); (3) postage for a standard international letter (1.15 for first-class postage and 0.03 for a standard envelope = 1.18); (4) photocopying (0.11 per page); and (5) fax services (0.12 per page).

6(c) Estimating Agency Burden and Costs

For Agency burden and costs, EPA estimates an average hourly labor rate of \$66.90 for managerial staff (GS-14, Step 1), \$56.61 for technical staff (GS-13, Step 1), and \$21.66 for clerical staff (GS-5, Step 1).¹⁰ To derive these hourly estimates, EPA referred to the *General Schedule (GS) Salary Table 2016*. This publication summarizes the unloaded (base) hourly rate

⁸ Mean hourly wages from May 2014 National Occupational Employment and Wage Estimates, Bureau of Labor Statistics accessed at http://www.bls.gov/oes/current/oes_nat.htm on March 10, 2014. Inflated to 2015 dollars using the US Bureau of Labor Statistics Employment cost index between 2014 and 2015

⁹ To estimate average annual labor costs, EPA relies on national average wage data reported by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics for a full time employee working 40 hours a week multiplied by a loaded wage rate of 150 percent, which represents average private industry fringe benefits (e.g. paid time off, health benefits, retirement benefits, other legally required benefits, and payroll taxes) and overhead rates (e.g. general and administrative, fixed overhead, insurance, and profit).

¹⁰ See Chapter 3 of the Regulatory Impact Analysis for the rule.

for various labor categories in the Federal government. EPA applied the standard government overhead factor of 1.6 to the unloaded rate to derive loaded hourly labor rates.

6(d) Estimating the Respondent Universe and Total Burden and Costs

In this section, EPA first describes the respondent universe affected by the new information collection requirements resulting from the final action. EPA then estimates the *annual aggregate burden* to respondents under the rule and existing RCRA information collection requirements. The universe estimates and assumptions used in the development of this ICR are based on the Regulatory Impact Analysis developed for this rulemaking: "Assessment of the Potential Costs, Benefits, and Other Impacts of the Hazardous Waste Export-Import Revisions Rule" (hereinafter referred to as the Cost Assessment document for the rule), which is available in the docket for the rule.

(1) Respondent Universe

In Exhibits 1 and 2 below, EPA provides estimates of the annual number of importers and exporters (and export and import shipments) that will be subject to the paperwork requirements in the rule.

Exhibit 1

Country of Origin ¹	Number of A	ffected Entities	Average Number of		
Country of Origin ¹	U.S. Importers	U.S. Transporters ⁶	Shipments per Year		
Canada ^{2,3,4,5}	40	40	79		
Mexico ^{2,3,5}	16	16	17		
OECD Countries	3	3	37		
Non-OECD Countries	2	2	28		
Total	61	61	59		

Number of Importers and Shipments Potentially Affected by the Rule

Notes:

- Three importers received waste from two or more countries as described below. Therefore, there are 57 unique importers, rather than 61 listed above. However, this exhibit parses out the importers that receive from more than one country into each of their respective origins to accurately reflect the average number of shipments sent to each importer. Depending on the context, the remainder of this document may similarly parse out importers that receive from more than one country separately to accurately estimate costs associated with receiving from alternative destinations. That is, the analysis often uses the 61 count of importers and not the 57 unique importers.
- 2. While Canada and Mexico are OECD countries, under existing regulations there are different requirements for the foreign trade of hazardous waste with these countries compared with other OECD countries. Therefore, this EA estimates impacts to importers (and exporters) separately for trade with Canada and Mexico versus other OECD countries.
- 3. A single importer received shipments from Canada, Mexico, and Germany
- 4. A single importer received shipments from Canada and Syria (non-OECD)
- 5. A single importer received shipments from Mexico, Japan (OECD), Malaysia (non-OECD), and the Philippines (non-OECD)
- 6. This analysis assumes one transporter per shipment.
- Source: U.S. EPA RCRA manifests for import shipments, 2014.

Exhibit 2 Number of Exporters and Shipments Potentially Affected by the Rule

Destination Country ¹	Number of A	ffected Entities	Average Number of
Destination Country	U.S. Exporters	U.S. Transporters	Shipments per Year
Canada ^{2,3,4,5}	348	348	68
Mexico ^{2,3}	21	21	1,146
OECD Countries ^{3,5}	34	34	58
Non-OECD Countries	0	0	0
Total	403	403	126
Notes:			
rather than 403 listed more than one country respective destination destination. Dependin out exporters that ship	above. However, this y group (Mexico, Can s to accurately reflect g on the context, the o to more than one con	exhibit parses out the hada, OECD, Non-OEC the average number of remainder of this documuntry separately to accu	2D) into each of their E shipments sent to each ment may similarly parse

- uses the 403 count of exporters and not the 395 unique exporters where appropriate.
 While Canada and Mexico are OECD countries, under existing regulations there are different requirements for the foreign trade of hazardous waste with these countries compared with other OECD countries. Therefore, this EA estimates impacts to exporters (and importers) separately for trade with Canada and Mexico versus other OECD countries.
- 3. Four exporters sent shipments to both Canada and Korea
- 4. Two exporters sent shipments to Canada and Mexico
- 5. Two exporters sent shipments to Canada and Germany

Source: U.S. EPA Export Annual Reports, 2014.

(2) Annual Respondent Hour and Cost Burden under the Rule

Annual respondent hour and cost burden estimates are summarized below and itemized in the exhibits at the end of this document.

(a) Reading the Regulations

EPA expects that all 395 exporters and 57 importers will need to familiarize themselves with the requirements of the rule.¹¹ EPA assumes that reading and understanding the rule will require one hour of a manager's time and 2.5 hours of a technician's time.¹² This is equivalent to an upfront cost of \$323.25 per facility.

(b) CDX Registration

¹¹ For reporting purposes, EPA estimates that if an exporter ships waste to both Canada and Mexico, half of the costs are incurred for shipments to Canada and half are incurred for shipments to Mexico. Therefore, costs are proportionally distributed (by country) for entities that trade with more than one country.

¹² Page B-1 of the Cost Assessment for the Proposed Rule on Exports and Imports of Hazardous Waste Destined for Recovery Among OECD Countries, Exports of Spent Lead-Acid Batteries from the U.S., and Import Consent Documentation: Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, May 2009.

EPA assumes that exporters and importers will register to use the CDX system starting in the first year of the rule's promulgation. The average initial registration cost per entity is estimated to be \$61.15 per exporter (assuming an average of 5.1 registrants per exporter) and \$57.91 per importer (assuming an average of 4.8 registrants per importer), including the cost of printing, signing, and mailing an "electronic signature agreement" to EPA if the registrant fails the system's identity-proofing requirements. The estimated recurring costs following the promulgation of the rule are \$7.45 per exporter and \$7.06 per importer, including the cost to register new users due to employee turnover and allow existing users to update their information each year.

(c) Export and Import Notices

Notification cost burdens will vary under the rule for exports to Canada, Mexico, non-OECD countries, and OECD countries. During the first year of the rule, additional data entry costs per U.S. exporter will be as follows: \$70.06 (Canada) and \$46.05 (Mexico). There were no export shipments to non-OECD countries in 2014, but if there are in the future, these facilities would experience a cost burden of \$35.59 per notice in each subsequent year. U.S. exporters will experience the following average costs: \$29.06 (Canada), and \$18.87 (Mexico), U.S. exporters to all countries will incur a cost burden of \$0.56 to electronically sign each notice submitted electronically. U.S. importers receiving shipments from Mexico will face incremental notification costs of \$919.21 per notice in the first year, and \$375.24 in each subsequent year.

The removal of the one-time notification requirement in the rule will also result in cost savings of \$38.33 for each affected U.S. importer. In addition, the electronic submittal of import manifests to EPA will result in materials-related cost savings of \$0.74 per shipment for all U.S. importers.

(d) Re-notification

Under the rule, EPA estimates that 32 percent of export notices per year (approximately 290 in total) will require re-notification each year. Based on the number of affected shipments, the average costs per exporter for this activity are as follows: \$1.51 (Canada); \$0.84 (Mexico); and \$0.95 (OECD); electronic submittal of re-notifications will not result in materials-related cost savings.

(e) Annual Reports

Annual reporting requirements under the rule are estimated to result in annual costs per exporter of \$0.59 per submission (one per year) to provide an electronic signature. In addition, the electronic submittal of annual reports will result in materials-related cost savings of \$5.55 per notice for all U.S. exporters.

(f) Additional Reports

EPA estimates no change in exporter burden related to the requirements for additional reports.

(g) Contracts

Contract requirements for facilities exporting and importing to Mexico and non-OECD importers will cost approximately \$2,236 per facility for the first year, and will not result in additional costs in subsequent years.

(h) Acknowledgment of Consent to Transporter

The rule eliminates the requirement that exporters provide a copy of the EPA Acknowledgment of Consent to transporters. This will result in the following per-entity cost savings for exporters: \$666 (Canada); and \$11,201 (Mexico).

(i) Exception Reports

This component of the rule will burden exporters with the incremental requirement of an electronic signature for each submission, resulting in a cost burden of \$0.59 per affected export shipment. Electronic submission of exception reports will also save U.S. exporters \$0.52 in materials-related costs for each report submitted to EPA. Thus, the net cost of this provision is approximately \$0.07 per shipment.

(j) International Movement/Tracking Document

U.S. exporters to Mexico are estimated to incur incremental reporting costs of \$55.25 per shipment, for a total per-entity cost of: \$63,322. U.S. exporters to non-OECD countries will not incur additional costs. U.S. importers from Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries will incur an incremental reporting burden, estimated on a per-entity basis to be: \$141 (Canada), \$1,259 (Mexico) and \$2,128 (non-OECD). Electronic submission of the movement document by U.S. importers from OECD countries will result in materials-related cost savings of \$0.52 per submission.

(k) Confirmation of Recovery or Disposal

U.S. exporters to Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries are estimated to incur incremental costs for each shipment under this requirement, yielding a per-entity cost of: \$260 (Canada); and \$4,379 (Mexico).

U.S. importers from Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries will also face an incremental reporting burden to send a confirmation of recovery or disposal to the exporter, EPA, and competent authority of the country of export. The average cost burden per entity is estimated as follows: \$94 (Canada); \$433 (Mexico); and \$732 (non-OECD). All importers will also experience an additional cost of \$0.59 to electronically sign each confirmation of recovery

or disposal.

(l) Return of Wastes

EPA does not estimate any incremental burden resulting from changes to this provision.

(m) Exemption of Wastes Destined for Laboratory Analysis

EPA estimates that each shipment no longer qualifying for this exemption will cost exporters \$58.52, importers \$99.96, and transporters \$5.24. Exporters will also experience \$9.55 in cost savings associated with finding and copying the acknowledgement of consent document per non-exempt shipment. A total of two import shipments and two export shipments per year are expected to no longer be exempted across all shipments to and from Canada, Mexico, and non-OECD countries.

(n) Automated Export System Filing Requirements

No change in burden is estimated relating to this provision.

(o) Obtain EPA Identification Numbers

Obtaining an EPA identification number is estimated to cost \$39.40 for each recognized trader of hazardous waste.

6(e) Bottom Line Burden Hours and Costs

(1) **Respondent Tally**

Exhibit 23 reports the number of respondents that must comply with information collection activities under the rule. Exhibit 24 reports the total annual respondent burden and costs associated with the aforementioned new information collection activities. The exhibit shows that the total annual respondent burden under the rule during the first year of its implementation, including the cost of reading the rule, is estimated to be 28,810 hours and \$1,458,434.52. In the year the electronic submittal system is implemented, the total annual respondent burden under the rule is estimated to be 30,034 hours and \$893,452.69. In each subsequent year, the respondent burden is estimated to be 29,847 hours and \$1,454,261.70. In the first year the rule is implemented, cost savings associated with the rule are estimated to be \$467,091.79 across all respondents. In each subsequent year, cost savings associated with the rule are estimated to be \$470,159.85. For the affected hazardous waste generator entities, the average number of responses per affected entity is estimated to be 7.8 in the first year after the promulgation of the rule and 5.3 per year in each subsequent year. Thus, the average number of responses per entity in the first three years of the rule is 7.6 per year. Finally, Exhibit 25 reports the average annual private industry and Agency burden and cost estimates for the first three years of the rule.

(2) Agency Tally

Estimated Agency costs and cost savings for the various information collection activities under the rule, as delineated in Section 5(a) above, are presented in Exhibits 21 and 22 below. The exhibits show that the total annual Agency burden under the rule is estimated to include \$380,000 in development costs for enhancements to WIETS and between \$72,000 and \$250,000 in O&M costs for years 2016 and 2017, and \$260,500 in O&M costs each year after that. EPA will also incur additional costs for processing movement documents, confirmations of recovery, and requests for EPA IDs from recognized traders. These costs are estimated to be \$631,688 in the first year of the rule, and \$631,688 in each subsequent year. EPA is also expected to experience a cost savings of \$238,416 each year since the electronic system will eliminate the need to manually enter export notice and export annual report data and answer exporter inquiries via phone.

6(f) Reasons for Change in Burden

As aforementioned, the new paperwork requirements under the rule are necessary to make existing export and import related requirements more consistent with the current importexport requirements required for shipments between OECD member countries; enable electronic submittal of all export and import-related documents; and enable electronic submittal and validation of consent in the AES for export shipments subject to RCRA export consent requirements prior to exit.

6(g) Burden Statement

Annual public reporting burden for this ICR is provided on a total and per-entity basis in the tables that follow. Burden means the total time, effort, or financial resources expended by persons to generate, maintain, retain, or disclose or provide information to or for a Federal agency. This includes the time needed to review instructions; develop, acquire, install, and utilize technology and systems for the purposes of collecting, validating, and verifying information, processing and maintaining information, and disclosing and providing information; adjust the existing ways to comply with any previously applicable instructions and requirements; train personnel to be able to respond to a collection of information; search data sources; complete and review the collection of information; and transmit or otherwise disclose the information. An agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. The OMB control numbers for EPA's regulations are listed in 40 CFR Part 9 and 48 CFR Chapter 15.

Exhibit 3 Reading the Rule (In the first year of Rule Implementation Only)

			Hours an	d Costs Pe	er Entity			Total Hours and Costs ³					
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost	O&M Cost	Total Cost ¹	Number of Respondents ²	Total Hours	Total Cost			
U.S. Exporters	U.S. Exporters												
Reading the rule	1	2.5	0	3.5	\$323.25	\$0.00	\$323.25	394	1,377	\$127,198.31			
U.S. Importers													
Reading the rule	1	2.5	0	3.5	\$323.25	\$0.00	\$323.25	56	194	\$17,940.29			
TOTAL - YEAR 1								449	1,572	\$145,138.60			

Notes:

(1) Cost Assessment for the Final Rule on Exports and Imports of Hazardous Waste Destined for Recovery Among OECD Countries, Exports of Spent Lead-Acid Batteries from the U.S., and Import Consent Documentation: Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, May 2009.

(2) Unique entity counts are based on U.S. EPA Export and Import Annual Reports, 2014.

(3) Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Exhibit 4 CDX Registration Costs

		Hou	rs and Costs P	er Regist	rant			, in the second s	Fotal Hours an	d Costs ³	
Information Collection Activity ¹	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost	O&M Cost	Total Cost	Number of Respondents	Number of Registrants ²	Total Hours	Total Cost
U.S. Exporters											
Initial registration - Year 1	0	0.15	0	0.15	\$10.68	\$0.00	\$10.68	394	2,007	301	\$21,4,28.88
New registrations - every year after Year 1	0	0.15	0	0.15	\$10.68	\$0.00	\$10.68	394	221	33	\$2,357.17
Update information - every year after Year 1	0	0.02	0	0.02	\$1.42	\$0.00	\$1.42	394	201	4	\$285.72
Electronic signature if registrant fails identity (proofing requirements, Year 1)	0	0.0833	0	0.0833	\$5.93	\$0.63	\$6.56	394	401	33	\$2,632.89
Electronic signature if registrant fails identity-proofing requirements - every year after Year 1	0	0.0833	0	0.0833	\$5.93	\$0.63	\$6.56	394	44	4	\$289.62
U.S. Importers	-	-						-			
Initial registration - Year 1	0	0.15	0	0.15	\$10.68	\$0.00	\$10.11	56	268	40	\$2,864.89
Initial registration – Electronic System Implementation Year	0	0.15	0	0.15	\$10.68	\$0.00	\$10.11	56	30	4	\$315.14
New registrations – Years following Electronic System Implementation.	0	0.02	0	0.02	\$1.42	\$0.00	\$1.35	56	27	1	\$38.20
Update information - ears following Electronic System Implementation.	0	0.0833	0	0.0833	\$5.93	\$0.63	\$6.56	56	54	4	\$352.00
Electronic signature if Respondent fails identity (proofing requirements, Electronic System Implementation Year	0	0.0833	0	0.0833	\$5.93	\$0.63	\$6.56	56	6	0	\$38.72
TOTAL - YEAR 1								449		379	\$24,061.71
TOTAL - AFTER YEAR 1								449		46	\$3,324.56

<u>Notes:</u>

(1) Assumes electronic system implementation in 2018.

(2) EPA estimates that there are 4.8 registrants per respondent for importers and 5.1 registrants for exporters.

(3) Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Exhibit 5 Notification Costs

		Hou	rs and Costs I	Per Notific	ation				Total Hours	and Cost	s ⁴
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost ^{1,3}	O& M Cost	Total Cost	Number of Resp.²	Number of Notices	Total Hours	Total Cost
U.S. Exporters - Canada											
Submit additional data fields as part of notice of intent to export - Year 1	0	0.33	0	0.33	\$23.49	\$0.00	\$23.49	348	2.9	334	\$23,789.09
Submit additional data fields as part of notice of intent to export - after Year 1	0	0.132	0	0.132	\$9.40	0	\$9.40	348	2.9	134	\$9,513.23
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	348	2.9	8	\$598.18
U.S. Exporters – Mexico	·										·
Submit additional data fields as part of notice of intent to export - Year 1	0	0.5	0	0.5	\$35.59	\$0.00	\$35.59	21	1.3	14	\$951.30
Submit additional data fields as part of notice of intent to export - after Year 1	0	0.2	0	0.2	\$14.24	0	\$14.24	21	1.3	5	\$380.52
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	21	1.3	0.2	\$15.79
U.S. Exporters - non-OECD											
Submit additional data fields as part of notice of intent to export - Year 1	0	0.5	0	0.5	\$35.59	\$0.00	\$35.59	0	2.5	0	\$0.00
Submit additional data fields as part of notice of intent to export - after Year 1	0	0.2	0	0.2	\$14.24	0	\$14.24	0	2.5	0.0	\$0.00
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	0	2.5	0.0	\$0.00
U.S. Exporters – OECD											
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	34	1.0	0	\$20.09
U.S. Importers – Mexico											
Submit export notices on behalf of foreign exporters - Electronic System Implementation Year	0.1	1.8	0.1	2	\$146.48	\$0.00	\$152.58	16	6.3	200	\$14,648.35
Submit export notices on behalf of foreign exporters - average facility burden, starting in Electronic System Implementation Year	0.04	0.732	0.04	0.812	\$59.45	\$).00	\$61.89	16	6.3	50	\$3,599.28
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	16	6.3	1	\$59.08
TOTAL - YEAR 1								672		811	\$25,368.44
TOTAL - AFTER YEAR 1								672		335	\$25.235.25

Notes:

(1) Cost of import notice from: Supporting Statement for EPA Information Collection Request Number 0820.11 Hazardous Waste Generator Standards (Renewal), March 30, 2011.

(2) Import notice totals from EPA's International Compliance Assurance Division (ICAD), sent via e-mail from Phuc Phan on June 5, 2014.

(3) Electronic signature burden from: Supporting Statement for EPA Information Collection Request Number 2002.05: "Cross-Media Electronic Reporting Rule", June 22, 2011, Office of Environmental Information, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.

(4) Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Exhibit 6 Notification Cost Savings

		Ho	urs and Costs	Per Notifi	cation			Т	otal Hours an	d Costs ⁴	
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours ¹	Labor Cost	O&M Cost ³	Total Cost Savings	Number of Respondents	Number of Notices ²	Total Hours	Total Cost Savings
U.S. Importers - Canada					1						
One-time notice to regional administrator stating intent to import	0.08	0.34	0.08	0.5	\$38.88	\$0.52	\$39.40	40	6	3	\$250.61
Send copy of import manifest to EPA	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	\$0.00	\$0.74	\$0.74	40	3,176	0	\$2,350.24
U.S. Importers - Mexico											
One-time notice to regional administrator stating intent to import	0.08	0.34	0.08	0.5	\$38.88	\$0.52	\$39.40	16	3	2	\$123.66
Send copy of import manifest to EPA	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	\$0.00	\$0.74	\$0.74	16	265	0	\$196.10
U.S. Importers - non-OECD											
One-time notice to regional administrator stating intent to import	0.08	0.34	0.08	0.5	\$38.88	\$0.52	\$39.40	3	0	0	\$12.24
Send copy of import manifest to EPA	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	\$0.00	\$0.74	\$0.74	3	84	0	\$62.16
U.S. Importers - OECD											
One-time notice to regional administrator stating intent to import	0.08	0.34	0.08	0.5	\$38.88	\$0.52	\$39.40	2	0	0	\$7.88
Send copy of import manifest to EPA	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	\$0.00	\$0.74	\$0.74	2	74	0	\$54.76
TOTAL								61		5	\$3,057.66

Notes:

 Burden estimate based on burden to obtain a new EPA ID number (similar data submittal process), as taken from: Supporting Statement for EPA Information Collection Request Number 0976.16, "2013 Hazardous Waste Report, Notification of Regulated Waste Activity, and Part A Hazardous Waste Permit Application and Modification, September 2012.
 One-time notices estimated to account for 5 percent of annual import notices. Based on information received from the EPA Regional Offices provided by Alan Barnosky of EPA's Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery.

(3) Includes cost for mailing one standard envelope.

(4) Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Exhibit 7 Re-notification Costs

		Hours	and Costs Per	Re-notifi	cation				Total Hours and O	Costs ³	
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost	O&M Cost	Total Cost ²	Number of Respondents	Number of Renotifications ¹	Total Hours	Total Cost
U.S. Exporters - Canada				•							
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	111	284	2.4	\$167.83
U.S. Exporters – Mexico											
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	7	10	0.1	\$5.66
U.S. Exporters - non-OECD											
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	0	0	0.0	\$0.00
U.S. Exporters - OECD											
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	11	17	0.1	\$10.34
TOTAL								129	311	2.6	\$183.82

Notes:

(1) 32 percent of respondents are estimated to submit re-notifications annually. Based on data from EPA's International Compliance Assurance Division

(ICAD) sent via e-mail from Phuc Phan on June 5, 2014.

(2) Supporting Statement for EPA Information Collection Request Number 2002.05: "Cross-Media Electronic Reporting Rule", June 22, 2011, Office of Environmental Information, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.

(3) Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Exhibit 9 Annual Report Costs

		Hou	rs and Costs	Per Repo	rt			Total Hou	irs and C	osts ²
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost ¹	O&M Cost	Total Cost	Number of Respondents	Total Hours	Total Cost
U.S. Exporters					-					
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	394	3	\$232.50
TOTAL								394	3	\$232.50

Notes:

(1) Supporting Statement for EPA Information Collection Request Number 2002.05: "Cross-Media Electronic Reporting Rule", June 22, 2011, Office of Environmental Information, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Exhibit 10 **Contract Costs**

			Hours and	Costs Per C	ontract ¹				Total Hou	rs and Cost	s ²
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28)	Technical (\$71.19)	Clerical (\$38.21)	Legal (\$165.45)	Total Hours	Labor Cost	Total Cost	Number of Entities	Total Number of Contract s	Total Hours	Total Cost
Exporters (Mexico)											
Write contract - year 1	4	0	0	10	14	\$2,235.60	\$2,235.60	21	22	308	\$49,183.28
Exporters (non-OECD)											
Write contract - year 1	4	0	0	10	14	\$2,235.60	\$2,235.60	0	0	0	\$0.00
Importers (Mexico)											
Write contract - year 1	4	0	0	10	14	\$2,235.60	\$2,235.60	16	103	1442	\$230,267.19
Importers (non-OECD)											
Write contract - year 1	4	0	0	10	14	\$2,235.60	\$2,235.60	3	33	462	\$ 73,774.93
TOTAL - YEAR 1								40	158	2,212	\$353,225.40

Notes:

(1) Communication with Greentec International, Inc. in February 2016.(2) Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Exhibit 11 Acknowledgment of Consent Cost Savings

		Hour	s and Costs P	er Shipm	ent				Total Hours ar	d Costs ²	
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labo r Cost	O&M Cost	Total Cost Savings ¹	Number of Respondents	Number of Shipments	Total Hours	Total Cost Savings
U.S. Exporters - Canada											
Find consent document	0	0	0.17	0.17	\$6.50	\$0.00	\$6.50	348	23,722	4,033	\$154,089.87
Copy consent document	0	0	0.08	0.08	\$3.06	\$0.22	\$3.28	348	23,722	1,898	\$77,731.72
U.S. Exporters - Mexico											
Find consent document	0	0	0.17	0.17	\$6.50	\$0.00	\$6.50	21	24,069	4,092	\$156,343.86
Copy consent document	0	0	0.08	0.08	\$3.06	\$0.22	\$3.28	21	24,069	1,926	\$78,868.76
U.S. Exporters - non-OECD											
Find consent document	0	0	0.17	0.17	\$6.50	\$0.00	\$6.50	0	0	0	\$0.00
Copy consent document	0	0	0.08	0.08	\$3.06	\$0.22	\$3.28	0	0	0	\$0.00
TOTAL								369	47,791	11,948	\$467,034.20

Notes:

(1) Estimated burden derived from Cost Assessment for the Final Rule on Exports and Imports of Hazardous Waste Destined for Recovery Among OECD Countries, Exports of Spent Lead-Acid Batteries from the U.S., and Import Consent Documentation: Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, May 2009.

Exhibit 12 Exception Report Costs

		Hou	rs and Costs	Per Repo	rt			Тс	otal Hours and C	Costs ³	
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost	O& M Cost	Total Cost²	Number of Respondents	Number of Affected Shipments ^{1,2}	Total Hours	Total Cost
U.S. Exporters - Canada											
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.56	\$0.00	\$0.56	348	9.53	0.08	\$5.63
			U.S. Ex	porters -	Mexico						
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.56	\$0.00	\$0.56	21	9.67	0.08	\$5.71
			U.S. Expo	rters - no	on-OECD)					
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.56	\$0.00	\$0.56	0	0	0.00	\$0.00
			U.S. Ex	porters -	OECD						
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.56	\$0.00	\$0.56	34	0.80	0.01	\$0.47
TOTAL								403	20.00	0.17	\$11.82

Notes:

(1) Estimated percentage of shipments requiring an exception report based on e-mail from Phuc Phan on June 5, 2014. The associated EA also tests a high-end assumption that 200 rather than 20 Shipments are affected. However, this ICR only displays the lower bound impact here

(2) Burden estimates from Cost Assessment for the Final Rule on Exports and Imports of Hazardous Waste Destined for Recovery Among OECD Countries, Exports of Spent Lead-Acid Batteries from the U.S., and Import Consent Documentation: Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, May 2009.

Exhibit 13 **Exception Report Cost Savings**

		Ho	ours and Costs	s Per Rep	ort			То	tal Hours and	Costs ²	
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost	O&M Cost	Total Cost	Number of Respondents	Number of Affected Shipments ¹	Total Hours	Total Cost
U.S. Exporters - Canada	·										
Mail exception report to EPA	0	0	0	0	\$0.00	\$0.52	\$0.52	348	10	0.00	\$4.96
U.S. Exporters - Mexico								-			
Mail exception report to EPA	0	0	0	0	\$0.00	\$0.52	\$0.52	21	10	0.00	\$5.03
U.S. Exporters - non-OECD								-			
Mail exception report to EPA	0	0	0	0	\$0.00	\$0.52	\$0.52	0	0	0.00	\$0.00
U.S. Exporters - OECD											
Mail exception report to EPA	0	0	0	0	\$0.00	\$0.52	\$0.52	34	1	0.00	\$0.41
TOTAL								403	20	0.00	\$10.40

<u>Notes:</u>

(1) Estimated percentage of shipments requiring an exception report based on e-mail from Phuc Phan on June 5, 2014
(2) Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Exhibit 14 Movement Document Costs

		Hou	irs and Costs	Per Shipn	nent				Total Hours	and Costs	1
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost	O&M Cost ²	Total Cost ^{1, 3}	Number of Respondents	Number of Shipments	Total Hours	Total Cost
U.S. Exporters - Mexico											
Complete movement document	0	0.5	0.5	1	\$54.70	\$0.55	\$55.25	21	24,069	24,069	\$1,329,755.75
U.S. Exporters - non-OECD											
Complete movement document	0	0.5	0.5	1	\$54.70	\$0.55	\$55.25	0	0	0	\$0.00
U.S. Importers - Canada											
Send a copy of the movement document to EPA and Environment Canada	0	0	0	0	\$0.00	\$1.18	\$1.18	40	3,176	0	\$3,747.68
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	40	3,176	26	\$1,876.51
U.S. Importers - Mexico											
Sign movement document and send a copy to EPA, exporter, foreign authority	0.1	0.5	0.5	1.1	\$69.23	\$2.36	\$71.59	16	265	292	\$18,970.32
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	16	265	2.20	\$156.57
Maintain a signed copy of the movement document	0	0	0.1	0.1	\$3.82	\$0.00	\$3.82	16	265	27	\$1,012.56
U.S. Importers - non-OECD	•		•	•			•		•		
Sign movement document and send a copy to EPA, exporter, foreign authority	0.1	0.5	0.5	1.1	\$69.23	\$2.36	\$71.59	3	84	92	\$6,013.23
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	3	84	0.70	\$49.63
Maintain a signed copy of the movement document	0	0	0.1	0.1	\$3.82	\$0.00	\$3.82	3	84	8	\$320.96
U.S. Importers - OECD											
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$0.59	2	74	1	\$43.72
TOTAL								80	27,668	24,518	\$1,361,947

Notes:

(1) Burden assumptions based on Supporting Statement for EPA Information Collection Request Number 0820.11 Hazardous Waste Generator Standards (Renewal), March 30, 2011.

(2) For importer movement document requirements assume \$1.15 for international postage and \$0.03 for a standard envelope. Based on USPS price calculator for 1 oz. envelope sent by first-class international letter.

(3) Burden estimates from Cost Assessment for the Final Rule on Exports and Imports of Hazardous Waste Destined for Recovery Among OECD Countries, Exports of Spent Lead-Acid Batteries from the U.S., and Import Consent Documentation: Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, May 2009.

Exhibit 15 Movement Document Cost Savings

		Ho	urs and Costs	Per Shipi	nent			То	tal Hours and	Costs ²		
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost	O&M Cost	Total Cost ¹	Number of Respondents	Number of Shipments	Total Hours	Total Cost	
U.S. Importers - OECD												
Send a copy of the movement document to EPA	0	0	0	0	\$0.00	\$0.52	\$0.52	2	74	0	\$38.4 8	
TOTAL								2	74	0	\$38.4 8	

Notes:

(1) Burden assumptions based on Supporting Statement for EPA Information Collection Request Number 0820.11 Hazardous Waste Generator Standards (Renewal), March 30, 2011.

Exhibit 16 Confirmation of Recovery

		Hou	rs and Costs l	Per Shipr	nent				Total Hours	and Cos	ts ³
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost ¹	O&M Cost ²	Total Cost	Number of Resp.	Number of Shipments	Total Hours	Total Cost
U.S. Exporters - Canada	•	Ļ	ļ		!	ł	1		!		
Receive and maintain confirmation of recovery provided by the recovery facility	0	0	0.1	0.1	\$3.82	\$0.0 0	\$3.82	348	23,722	2,372	\$90,641.10
U.S. Exporters - Mexico											
Receive and maintain confirmation of recovery provided by the recovery facility	0	0	0.1	0.1	\$3.82	\$0.0 0	\$3.82	21	24,069	2,407	\$91,966.97
U.S. Exporters - non-OECD											
Receive and maintain confirmation of recovery provided by the recovery facility	0	0	0.1	0.1	\$3.82	\$0.0 0	\$3.82	0	0	0	\$0.00
U.S. Importers - Canada				•					•		
Send a confirmation of recovery to the exporter, EPA and competent authorities of the country of export	0	0	0	0	0	\$1.1 8	\$1.18	40	3,176	1,429	\$3,747.68
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.0 0	\$0.59	40	3,176	26	\$1,876.51
U.S. Importers - Mexico		I	I	1		I	I		1	1	
Send a confirmation of recovery to the exporter, EPA and competent authorities of the country of export	0	0.2	0.25	0.45	\$23.7 9	\$2.3 6	\$26.15	16	265	119	\$6,929.63
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.0 0	\$0.59	16	265	2	\$156.57
U.S. Importers - non-OECD											
Send a confirmation of recovery to the exporter, EPA and foreign authority	0	0.2	0.25	0.45	\$23.7 9	\$2.3 6	\$26.15	3	84	38	\$2,196.56
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.0 0	\$0.59	3	84	1	\$49.63
U.S. Importers - OECD	1	1	1		1	-		1			
Electronic signature	0	0.0083	0	0.0083	\$0.59	\$0.0 0	\$0.59	2	74	1	\$43.72
TOTAL								430	51,390	4,96 6	\$197,608. 38

Notes:

(1) Burden estimates based on Cost Assessment for the Final Rule on Exports and Imports of Hazardous Waste Destined for Recovery Among OECD Countries, Exports of Spent Lead-Acid Batteries from the U.S., and Import Consent Documentation: Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, May 2009.

(2) Assume \$1.15 for international postage and \$0.03 for a standard envelope. Based on USPS price calculator for 1 oz. envelope sent by first-class international letter. (3) Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Exhibit 17 Confirmation of Recovery Cost Savings

Information Collection]	Hours and Cos	sts Per Shij	pment			Т	otal Hours and	l Costs ²	
Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost	O&M Cost	Total Cost ¹	Number of Respondents	Number of Shipments	Total Hours	Total Cost
	(\$145.20/111)	(\$/1.15/11)	(\$30.21/11)	110015	Cust	Cust	CUSI	Respondents	Simplifients	110015	Cusi
U.S. Importers - OECD											
Send a copy of the	0	0	0	0	\$0.00	\$0.52	\$0.52	2	74	0	\$38.48
movement document to EPA	0	0	0	0	\$0.00	\$0.52	J U.52	2	/4	0	φ30.40
TOTAL								2	74	0	\$38.48

Notes:

(1) Burden assumptions based on Supporting Statement for EPA Information Collection Request Number 0820.11 Hazardous Waste Generator Standards (Renewal), March 30, 2011.

Exhibit 18 Laboratory Exemption Costs

		Hour	s and Costs P	er Shipm	ent			Tot	al Hours and	Costs ³	
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hour s	Labor Cost	O& M Cost	Total Cost²	Number of Respondent s	Number of Affected Shipments ¹	Total Hour s	Total Cost
U.S. Exporters - Canada											
Complete and sign movement/tracking document	0	0.5	0.5	1	\$54.70	\$0.00	\$54.70	348	1.0	1.0	\$54.31
Receive and maintain confirmation of recovery provided by the recovery facility	0	0	0.1	0.1	\$3.82	\$0.00	\$3.82	348	1.0	0.1	\$3.79
U.S. Exporters - Mexico								•	•		
Complete and sign movement/tracking document	0	0.5	0.5	1	\$54.70	\$0.00	\$54.70	21	1.0	1.0	\$55.10
Receive and maintain confirmation of recovery provided by the recovery facility	0	0	0.1	0.1	\$3.82	\$0.00	\$3.82	21	1.0	0.1	\$3.85
U.S. Exporters - non-OECD	•										
Complete and sign movement/tracking document	0	0.5	0.5	1	\$54.70	\$0.00	\$54.70	0	0.0	0.0	\$0.00
Receive and maintain confirmation of recovery provided by the recovery facility	0	0	0.1	0.1	\$3.82	\$0.00	\$3.82	0	0.0	0.0	\$0.00

Exhibit 18 (continued) Laboratory Exemption Costs

	Managerial Technical Clerical Total Labor O&M Total Number of (\$145-29(hz) (\$71-10(hz) (\$29-21(hz) Hours Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost							tal Hours and	Costs ³		
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost	O&M Cost	Total Cost ²	Number of Respondents	Number of Affected Shipments ¹	Total Hours	Total Cost
U.S. Importers - Canada											
Sign movement/tracking document and provide a copy to the exporter, EPA, and competent authorities of the country of export	0.1	0.5	0.5	1.1	\$69.23	\$1.56	\$70.7 9	40	1.8	2.0	\$127.56
Maintain a copy of the signed movement/tracking document	0	0	0.1	0.1	\$3.82	\$0.00	\$3.82	40	1.8	0.2	\$6.89
Send a confirmation of recovery to the exporter, EPA, and competent authorities of the country of export	0	0.2	0.25	0.45	\$23.79	\$1.56	\$25.3 5	40	1.8	0.8	\$45.68
U.S. Importers - Mexico											
Sign movement/tracking document and provide a copy to the exporter, EPA, and competent authorities of the country of export	0.1	0.5	0.5	1.1	\$69.23	\$1.56	\$70.7 9	16	0.2	0.2	\$10.64
Maintain a copy of the signed movement/tracking document	0	0	0.1	0.1	\$3.82	\$0.00	\$3.82	16	0.2	0.0	\$0.57
Send a confirmation of recovery to the exporter, EPA, and competent authorities of the country of export	0	0.2	0.25	0.45	\$23.79	\$1.56	\$25.3 5	16	0.2	0.1	\$3.81
U.S. Importers - non-OECD											
Sign movement/tracking document and provide a copy to the exporter, EPA, and competent authorities of the country of export	0.1	0.5	0.5	1.1	\$69.23	\$1.56	\$70.7 9	3	0.0	0.1	\$3.37
Maintain a copy of the signed movement/tracking document	0	0	0.1	0.1	\$3.82	\$0.00	\$3.82	3	0.0	0.0	\$0.18
Send a confirmation of recovery to the exporter, EPA, and competent authorities of the country of export	0	0.2	0.25	0.45	\$23.79	\$1.56	\$25.3 5	3	0.0	0.0	\$1.21

Exhibit 18 (continued) Laboratory Exemption Costs

		Ho	urs and Costs	Per Ship	ment			T	otal Hours and	Costs ³	
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost	O&M Cost	Total Cost²	Number of Respondents	Number of Affected Shipments ¹	Total Hours	Total Cost
Transporters											
Upon obtaining physical custody of the waste, sign the movement/tracking document	0	0.01	0	0.01	\$0.71	\$0.00	\$0.71	533	4.0	0.0	\$2.85
Maintain a copy of the signed movement/tracking document	0	0	0.1	0.1	\$3.82	\$0.00	\$3.82	533	4.0	0.4	\$15.28
Upon delivery of the waste, obtain signed copy of the movement/tracking document from the OECD country recovery facility	0	0.01	0	0.01	\$0.71	\$0.00	\$0.71	533	4.0	0.0	\$2.85
TOTAL								961		6.0	\$337.94

Notes:

(1) Affected shipments based on estimates from Cost Assessment for the Final Rule on Exports and Imports of Hazardous Waste Destined for Recovery Among OECD Countries, Exports of Spent Lead-Acid Batteries from the U.S., and Import Consent Documentation: Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, May 2009. Ratio of OECD imports/exports for lab analysis and total OECD imports/exports.
 (2) Burden estimates based on Cost Assessment for the Final Rule on Exports and Imports of Hazardous Waste Destined for Recovery Among OECD Countries, Exports of Spent Lead-Acid Batteries from the U.S., and Import Consent Documentation: Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, May 2009.

Exhibit 19 Laboratory Exemption Cost Savings

		Hou	rs and Costs	Per Ship	ment			То	tal Hours and	Costs ³	
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labo r Cost	O&M Cost	Total Cost Savings²	Number of Respondents	Number of Affected Shipments ¹	Total Hour s	Total Cost Savings
U.S. Exporters - Canada						•			•		
Find and copy acknowledgment of consent document	0	0	0.25	0.25	\$9.55	\$0.00	\$9.55	348	1.0	0.2	\$9.48
U.S. Exporters - Mexico											
Find and copy acknowledgment of consent document	0	0	0.25	0.25	\$9.55	\$0.00	\$9.55	21	1.0	0.3	\$9.62
U.S. Exporters - non-OECD				-	-						
Find and copy acknowledgment of consent document	0	0	0.25	0.25	\$9.55	\$0.00	\$9.55	0	0.0	0.0	\$0.00
TOTAL								369	2	1	\$19.11

Notes:

(1) Affected shipments based on estimates from Cost Assessment for the Final Rule on Exports and Imports of Hazardous Waste Destined for Recovery Among OECD Countries, Exports of Spent Lead-Acid Batteries from the U.S., and Import Consent Documentation: Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, May 2009. Ratio of OECD imports/exports for lab analysis and total OECD imports/exports.
 (2) Burden estimates based on Cost Assessment for the Final Rule on Exports and Imports of Hazardous Waste Destined for Recovery Among OECD Countries, Exports of Spent Lead-Acid Batteries from the U.S., and Import Consent Documentation: Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, May 2009.

Exhibit 20 EPA Identification Number

		Hours and	Total Hours and Costs ³							
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$145.28/hr)	Technical (\$71.19/hr)	Clerical (\$38.21/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost ¹	O& M Cost	Total Cost	Number of Respondents ²	Total Hours	Total Cost
U.S. Recognized Traders										
Obtain an EPA ID number – Year 1	0.08	0.34	0.08	0.5	\$38.88	\$0.52	\$39.40	4	2	\$157.61
TOTAL - YEAR 1								4	2	\$157.61

Notes:

(1) Hourly burden estimates from: Supporting Statement for EPA Information Collection Request Number 0976.16, "2013 Hazardous Waste Report,

Notification of Regulated Waste Activity, and Part A Hazardous Waste Permit Application and Modification, September 2012.

(2) Estimated number of recognized traders based on EPA guidance on methodology table.

Note: Recognized traders are estimated to account for 1% of all importers and exporters.

Exhibit 21 Agency Costs

		Hours	and Costs Per	Respondent Pe	r Activity ¹		To	tal Hours and	Costs ⁶
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$66.90/hr)	Technical (\$56.61/hr)	Clerical (\$21.66/hr)	Labor Cost	Capital/ Startup Cost	O&M Cost	Number of Resp.	Total Hours	Total Cost
Movement Document ²									
Receive and record tracking document from importing country (exports)	286.5	0.00	0.00	\$402,529.96	\$0.00	\$0.00	21	6,017.25	\$402,529.96
Receive and record tracking document from importing facility (imports)	29.87	0.00	0.00	\$117,904.20	\$0.00	\$0.00	59	1,762.50	\$117,904.20
Confirmation of Recovery/Di	sposal ³								
Receive and maintain confirmation of recovery provided by recovery facility (exports and imports)	0.00	0.00	11.99	\$111,170.98	\$0.00	\$0.00	428	5,131.60	\$111,170.98
EPA IDs for Recognized Tra	ders of Hazard	ous Waste ⁴							•
Review letter requesting EPA ID number and enter this information into a database (Year 1)	0.00	0.35	0.00	\$79.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	4	1.40	\$79.25
Generate EPA ID number and send EPA ID number to recognized trader (Year 1)	0.00	0.00	0.50	\$43.33	\$0.00	\$0.49	4	2.00	\$45.29
EPA Electronic Reporting Sy	stem Developn	nent ⁵							
CDX System Development									
Total Development Costs (Year 0)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$285,000.00	\$0.00	1	N/A	\$285,000.00
O&M Costs (Year 0)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$0.00	\$72,000.00	1	N/A	\$72,000.00
Total Development Costs (Year 1)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$95,000.00	\$0.00	1	N/A	\$95,000.00
O&M Costs (Year 1)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$0.00	\$250,500.00	1	N/A	\$250,500.00
O&M Costs (Incurred after Year 1)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$0.00	\$260,500.00	1	N/A	\$260,500.00
TOTAL - (Costs incurred in Year 0)								-	\$357,000.00

		Hours	Total Hours and Costs ⁶						
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$66.90/hr)	Technical (\$56.61/hr)	Clerical (\$21.66/hr)	Labor Cost	Capital/ Startup Cost	O&M Cost	Number of Resp.	Total Hours	Total Cost
TOTAL - (Costs incurred in Year 1)							varies	12,915	\$977,229.68
TOTAL - (Costs incurred after Year 1)							varies	1,763	\$892,229.68

Notes:

(1) U.S. Office of Personnel Management, Salary Table 2016-GS, Incorporating the 1% General Schedule Increase, Effective January 2016, Hourly Basic Rates by Grade and Step, accessed at https://www.opm.gov/policy-data-oversight/pay-leave/salaries-wages/salary-tables/pdf/2016/GS_h.pdf on January 15, 2016

(2) Supporting statement for EPA information collection request number 0820.11, hazardous waste generator standards (renewal), March 30, 2011.

(3) Cost Assessment for the Final Rule on Exports and Imports of Hazardous Waste Destined for Recovery Among OECD Countries, Exports of Spent Lead-Acid Batteries from the U.S., and Import Consent Documentation. Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. May 2009.

(4) Supporting Statement for EPA Information Collection Request Number 0976.16, "2013 Hazardous Waste Report, Notification of Regulated Waste Activity, and Part A Hazardous Waste Permit Application and Modification," September 19, 2012.

(5) EPA reporting system development and operation & maintenance costs from the Excel Spreadsheet "Cost estimates_March 11 2016.xlsx," provided by Joseph Krahe of EPA's Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery on March 16, 2016.

Exhibit 22 Agency Cost Savings

			Hours and C	Total Hours and Costs ¹							
Information Collection Activity	Managerial (\$66.90 /hr)	Technical (\$56.61/hr)	Clerical (\$21.66/hr)	Total Hours	Labor Cost	O&M Cost	Cost Savings	Number of Respondents	Notices per Respondent	Total Hours	Total Cost Savings
EPA			•				·				
Avoided data entry for export notifications	0	1	0	1	\$56.61	\$0.00	\$56.61	656	2.49	1,631.71	\$92,367.59
Avoided hours answering export notice inquiries via telephone	0	1,000	0	1,000	\$56,608.00	\$0.00	\$56,608.00	1	N/A	1,000	\$56,608.00
Avoided data entry for annual reports	0	4	0	4	\$226.43	\$0.00	\$226.43	395	N/A	1,580	\$89,440.64
TOTAL										4,212	\$238,416.23

Exhibit 23 Estimated Number of Respondents Affected by the Hazardous Waste Export-Import Rule

	Number of Respondents											
Information Collection Activity	U.S. Exporters (Canada)	U.S. Exporters (Mexico)	U.S. Exporters (non-OECD)	U.S. Exporters (OECD)	U.S. Exporters (Other)	U.S. Importers (Canada)	U.S. Importers (Mexico)	U.S. Importers (non-OECD)	U.S. Importers (OECD)	Trans- porters	TOTAL ¹	
Reading the Rule	348	21	0	34	0	40	16	3	2	0	464	
CDX Registration	348	21	0	34	0	40	16	3	2	0	464	
Notification	348	21	0	34	253	0	16	0	0	0	672	
Re-notification	111	7	0	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	129	
Annual Report	348	21	0	34	0	0	0	0	0	0	403	
Contract	0	21	0	0	0	0	16	3	0	0	40	
Provide Acknowledgment of Consent to Transporter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Exception Report	348	21	0	34	0	0	0	0	0	0	403	
Movement Document	0	0	0	0	0	40	16	3	2	0	61	
Confirmation of Recovery or Disposal	0	0	0	0	0	40	16	3	2	0	61	
Exemption for Wastes Destined for Laboratory Analysis	348	21	0	34	0	40	16	3	0	533	995	
Obtain EPA ID	1	1	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	4	
TOTAL	348	21	0	34	253	40	16	3	2	553	1,305	

Notes:

 $\overline{(1)}$ Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Provision	Total Hours	Total Costs	Total Cost Savings	Net Costs
Reading the Rule - Year 1	1,572	\$145,139	\$0	\$145,138.60
CDX Registration - Year 1 for exporters	334	\$24,062	\$0	\$23,808.85
CDX Registration - After year 1 for exporters	41	\$2,933	\$0	\$2,904.69
CDX Registration - Implementation year for importers	45	\$787,580	\$0	\$787,546.03
CDX Registration - After implementation year for importers	5	\$392	\$0	\$388.34
Notification - Year 1 for exporters (costs only)	609	\$43,347	\$0	\$43,347.34
Notification - After year 1 for exporters (costs only)	252	\$17,950	\$0	\$17,949.54
Notification - Implementation year for importers (costs only)	201	\$14,707	\$3,058	\$11,649.77
Notification - After implementation year for importers (costs only)	51	\$3,618	\$3,058	\$560.71
Re-notification	3	\$184	\$0	\$183.82
Annual Report	3	\$232	\$0	\$232.50
Contracts - Year 1	2,212	\$353,225	\$0	\$353,225.40
Provide Acknowledgment of Consent to Transporter	0	\$0	\$467,034	(\$467,034.20)
Exception Report - Implementation year and after	0.17	\$12	\$10	\$1.42
Movement Document – Year 1 for exporters	24,069	\$1,329,756	\$38	\$1,316,479.32
Movement Document – Implementation year and after	24,518	\$1,361,947	\$38	\$1,344,099.18
Confirmation of Recovery or Disposal – After implementation year	4,966	\$202,180	\$0	\$197,608.30
Exemption for Wastes Destined for Laboratory Analysis	6	\$344	\$19	\$318.83
Obtain EPA IDs (Brokers, Year 1)	2	\$160	\$0	\$157.61
Total - Year 1	28,810	\$1,896,448.99	\$467,091.79	\$1,415,858.07
Total - Electronic System Implementation Year (Year 2)	30,035	\$2,388,068.26	\$470,159.85	\$1,895,459.97
Total - Years following Electronic System Implementation (Year 3 onward)	29,845	\$1,589,791.42	\$470,159.85	\$1,097,213.21

Exhibit 24 Total Annual Estimated Respondent Burden by Rule Provision

Notes:

(1) Numbers in parentheses indicate a net cost savings

(2) Assumes electronic system implementation in 2018.

Exhibit 25

Annual Respondent Burden and Cost Estimates Average of Year 1, electronic system implementation year, and years following electronic system implementation.

Respondent Type	Total Respondents	Total Responses	Number of Responses per Respondent	Total Hours	Total Labor Costs	Total Capital/Startup and O&M Costs	Total Cost
Private Industry	1,305	10,523	8.1	29,563	\$1,938,648	\$19,455	\$1,958,103
Agency ¹	N/A	512	N/A	16,440	\$1,895,183	\$866,506	\$2,761,689
State and Local Authorities	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Notes:

(1) Since agency costs were modeled differently from industry costs, this row reports agency costs representing the average of the first three years of the rule.